Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
May 12, 2020
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday May 12, 2020 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
Cliff Braly, Commissioner Kenny Campen and Commissioner David Gaskins.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott and via
teleconference: Richard Hughes and Janet Armstrong.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, March 10, 2020 minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, March 18, 2020 Special meeting
minutes to approve the state of emergency proclamation. Commissioner Garfinkel moved to
approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the May 12, 2020 agenda.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to accept the amended agenda. All ayes.

Public Comments: None
Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Mayor Fowler presented to the Commissioners the Resolution Adopting the Interlocal
Agreement with Pamlico County. He said this is to continue the agreement with the
County. It allows the County to do building inspections for the Town. The County will
not enforce the Town’s ordinances but it does enforce the State & County building
codes. The County has agreed they will not issue building permits or occupancy
permits until they have written approval from the Town. The County has not charged
for these services in the past but they can. If the County decides to charge a fee, the
Town will pay for the services. Mayor Fowler said this agreement is also needed for
the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance. Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to adopt
the resolution. Commissioner Gaskins move to adopt the Interlocal Agreement with
Pamlico County. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler presented to the Commissioners the Resolution to adopt the Pamlico
Sound Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. He said the Town is required to adopt the
PSRHMP so we fall under Pamlico County’s FEMA umbrella. Mayor Fowler said

5/12/2020 BOC meeting



approving this resolution, the Board of Commissioners adopts the Pamlico Sound
Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan and directs the Town Manager with the responsibility,
authority and means to inform all concerned parties of this action; Cooperate with
federal, state and local agencies and private firms. Commissioner Braly moved to adopt
the Pamlico Sound Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler said all of the commissioners had received a copy of Pamlico County
Damage Prevention ordinance. It is required to be added into the Town Code of
Ordinances by FEMA for residents to obtain federal flood insurance. All of the
definitions included in this ordinance apply ONLY to this ordinance and not to any
other ordinance in the Town’s Code of Ordinances. Mayor Fowler said folks can go to
fris.nc.gov to see if their home is in the flood plain. The deadline to approve is June
19, 2020. Commissioner Garfinkel moved to advertise for a public hearing on the
adoption of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance at the June 9 Board of
Commissioner’s meeting. All ayes.

Town Manager’s report:

We have a new contract for GFL Environmental (Waste Industries). Their fees are
increasing by $1.44 per scrvice for recycling. Commissioner Campen asked if the
Town had looked for a quote from another company. Ms. Braly told him no.
Commissioner Campen said he had seen lots of trash left behind by the man-free
dumping system. Ms. Braly asked him to please let her know when he sees this. She
told him anytime she took a complaint to GFLE, they have been very prompt with
correcting the problem. Mayor Fowler suggested we get a quote from another company
next January. Ms. Braly said she would take care of this. Commissioner Gaskins said
he’d heard Waste Removal Company was good.

Permits: there have been 6 zoning permit applications requested:
Anthony Morehead, 999B Mill Creek for outside staircase;

Laurel Creck Properties, 312 S. Brightleaf for new house;

Craig Peterson, 56 Palm C, new house,

Daniel Greeley, 11554 NC 306 S, stabilize foundation;

Albert Barnet, 181 Bennett Rd, shed and fence;

Carlos Melo at Wayfarers Cove, deck extension and handicap ramp.

Sk LN

Roosevelt Johnson Jr. has been hired to replace Larry Hackney. Thomas Shealy, 111
will remain as the maintenance assistant.

Planning Board: Commissioner Garfinkel said there was not a May meeting of the

Planning Board. He made a motion to add Janet Armstrong to the Planning Board. All
ayes. Mayor Fowler congratulated Ms. Armstrong,

Town Projects: Commissioner Braly reported the tree on the town property in front of
the Pawlikowski’s house has been removed.

5/12/2020 BOC meeting



The ditch on Hardison Dr and Country Club Dr has finally taken shape. The ditch has
been opened and is draining as it should. He reported they will sod the ditch and finish
the top on the drop inlet.

On the other end of Hardison Dr, Loco 811 has to come out to mark the utilities. They
have been very slow because of covid-19. This is the 2™ time the sink holes have
appeared. Pamlico Water Dept came out several years ago and said it was not their
problem. Commissioner Braly said the Town will open the hole with someone from the
water department on site. They have agreed if the problem is theirs, they will pay for
the repairs. Ifit is not, the Town will pay.

Commissioner Braly said that Mrs. Johnson on Phillips Dr. had reported two small sink
holes in her yard. He said he had Ken Heath to come fill them in. They are keeping an
eye on it.

Commissioner Gaskins asked whether there was a septic leak at a house on Phillips. He
said he could smell it every time he goes by it. But he said it has been going on for
years. Commissioner Braly said anytime you smell sewer gasses, you need to call the
Pamlico County Health Department.

Commissioner Braly reported the drainage ditch on Bennett Road and Country Club
West is ongoing. He reported he’d finally gotten some movement out of DOT. They
spent 7 hours digging Thursday of last week. They were establishing elevations of the
drain pipe and water line. DOT has notified the County they need to move their water
line. Mayor Fowler said he stopped to see what DOT was doing. He said while he was
there, a truck with a trailer drove over the culvert and the road caved in. He said within
an hour there were a dozen DOT men and equipment to do a temporary repair.,

Town Clean-up: Commissioner Braly reported Paul Toler could help with the Town
Clean-up on June 12 & 13. He will get an estimate from him. Mayor Fowler said the
Town has been doing a clean up twice a year for a long time and residents have come to
expect it. He said the problem is all of the volunteers are aging out and cannot or
should not be doing this. Mayor Fowler said he’d asked Commissioner Braly to ask
Paul Toler and get a price for him to do this. Commissioner Gaskins suggested
contracting Paul Toler to do the clean-up. Commissioner Braly said he would talk with
our maintenance guys to find out when they can work. After much discussion,
Commissioner Braly will get a price from Paul and confirm the date with our
maintenance guys.

Commissioner Campen asked if the Town would put up a “curve” sign on Phillips
Drive as approaching NC 306S. He said someone went across the road and into the
ditch because they did not realize the road turned. Town Manager said she would order
a sign,

2020-2021 Budget: Mayor Fowler said the commissioners need to set the tax rate, set
the pay raises and schedule a Public Hearing. The Commissioner went into Closed
Session to discuss salary raises at which time salaries were raised 3.5% across the
board. Commissioner Gaskins moved to maintain the current tax rate at $.11 per $100.
All ayes.

5/12/2020 BOC meeting



Financial Report: Commissioner Gaskins said the finances are in order and where they
should be at this time of year.

Commissioner Campen asked if payments were complete for the work done in the
Town Hall. Town Manager told him yes. He said he thought there wastobe a
commissioners’ punch list walk through. The Town Manager said the punch list was
completed. Mayor Fowler said he remembered a punch list discussion but he did not
remember a commissioners’ walk through being mentioned. Commissioner Campen
pointed out several things that were missed. Commissioner Gaskins said things one
person sees another does not. Mayor Fowler said it is behind us.

Mayor Fowler reported the current fee schedule has been here for 19 years. He asked if
they wanted to readopt it, change it or do nothing. Commissioner Gaskins asked what
other towns charged. Mayor Fowler asked if the Town’s costs are covered by these
fees. Town Manager said the cost of advertising for public hearings runs about $50.
Commissioner Campen moved to adopt the fee schedule as presented. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler asked if the commissioners want to amend and order a public hearing
ordinance 161.164 RM (C) 2 Special uses — Mobile Homes. Commissioner Campen
asked if the town maintains any control over the mobile home court. He said the grass
needs to be mowed and looks terrible. The Town Manager said the owner would be
contacted and asked to clean the area up. Commissioner Campen asked if the town
could put a Christmas Tree up on the vacant lot across the street from the mobile home
park. He said he is bringing up the Christmas Tree because he had been told to wait for
the budget time to add it. Mayor Fowler said there was money in the budget that could
be used for a tree. Commissioner Gaskins made motion to advertise for a public
hearing on amending ordinance 151.164 RM (C) 2 Special Uses — Mobile Homes.
Mayor Fowler asked for any discussion. Commissioner Garfinkel proposed the
commissioners not entertain changes at this time. Commissioner Gaskins said he
wanted to protect the town from additional trailer parks. Commissioner Campen
concurred. Mayor Fowler said we need to do what is best for the town. After extended
discussion, Commissioner Gaskins rescinded his motion. The commissioners tabled the
discussion.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the regular meeting
and go into closed session to discuss salaries, All Ayes.

Mso Mot

Donna Scott, Town Clerk

51272020 BOC meeting



